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Question: We would like to confirm that you will accept proposals for 'one or more of the 
functions' that you are looking for.   
Answer: That is correct. 
 
Question: We note that Phase 2 only mentions development of front end code. Will you want 
the contractor to set up and configure a new D9 site (back end development) also, or will this 
be completed by an in-house team? 
Answer: Yes, the contractor would be responsible for any backend development as well. We do 
not have an in-house team. 
 
Question: The RFP mentions migration of some content from the D7 site. Can you provide 
details of approximately how much content you envisage being migrated? 
Answer: We envision that the current website would be migrated. We went through a large 
website redesign in 2017 so we are in decent shape with content. 
 
Question: We note that you host your current site on Pantheon. We want to confirm that you 
wish to stay with hosting your new site on Pantheon too. 
Answer: We are fine with being hosted by Pantheon. 
 
Question: The summary paragraph on the cover page of the solicitation mentions TRL providing 
“access to the hosted platform under an existing subscription with complete test, stage, and 
production environments,” which suggests that the Library anticipates hosting the proposed 
solution itself. Would TRL instead consider adopting a vendor-hosted SaaS solution?  
Answer: Yes, the reference was to the existing Pantheon environment. That's not to say we 
won't consider other hosting options. 
 
Question: The instructions for submission of proposals mention that “electronic submissions 
must include a scanned copy of all signed signature pages” but the solicitation doesn't appear 
to specify which sections of the proposal must be signed, or to include any forms requiring 
signature. Could TRL clarify what the signature pages would be or if any additional forms are 
required?  
Answer: The signature could appear following the letter of introduction, an executive summary 
of the proposal, or simply a statement at the end indicating this is your complete proposal. 
 
Question: What is the total population served by TRL? The RFP provides a ballpark figure of 
more than 545,000 residents, but for pricing purposes we would need a more specific number. 
Should we use the combined county populations from the December 2021 budget report?  
Answer: The current 2022 estimated population for the county based on OFM's April 1st 
population estimates is 550,100. 
 
Question: Do you have a CMS that you’d prefer using with the new site, i.e. specific Open 
Source (Drupal) or proprietary CMS?  

https://ofm.wa.gov/washington-data-research/population-demographics/population-estimates/april-1-official-population-estimates
https://ofm.wa.gov/washington-data-research/population-demographics/population-estimates/april-1-official-population-estimates
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Answer: Prefer open source.  Do you have a preference for using WordPress, Drupal, or Joomla! 
Follow-up Question: Open Source solutions on the new site? 
Follow-up Answer: Prefer Wordpress or Drupal. We are open to others, but the vendor should 
factor in support and training if using a different Open Source solution.  
 
Question: Do you have an employee intranet area and if so, will this data need to be moved 
over to the new site?  
Answer: We use SharePoint for our staff intranet. That is outside the scope of this RFP.   
 
Question: Approximately how many pages will be migrated over from the old site to the new 
site? 
Answer: The pages we have currently are the ones we are migrating.  
Follow-up Question: I’m getting roughly 230 pages through a Google page search.  Can you 
verify on your Drupal backend the actual active page count? 
Follow-up Answer: Our IT staff says we have approximately 181 pages. 
 
 
Question: Do you plan to continue to use third party systems or do you want pricing for native 
features for chat, voice, calendar, room reservations, and/or other applications?  
Answer: We are open to either scenario.   
Follow-up Question: We also have a partner that offers a tool which aggregates messenger 
platforms (including Facebook messenger and SMS) into a single interface.  I can quote this as 
an optional feature if you are interested, but will most likely need some add’l information from 
you to do so.  Would you be interested in getting a quote for this feature? 
Follow-up Answer: We would be interested in learning more about this feature if it integrates 
throughout the proposed library website and/or catalog.  
 
Question: Specifically regarding SirsiDynix Symphony catalog system, what are you requiring 
related to “library catalog enhancements, implementations, or integration work?”  Do you 
know if SirsiDynix offers API’s and if so, what those API offerings may include?  
Answer: Yes, there is a web services API. As far as integrations go, that could be anything from 
unified search of resources including website, catalog, events, etc. It could include user account 
features integrated with the website itself. Book carousels, etc. This will also require a license 
from Sirsi Dynix.   
Follow-up Question: Do you know which specific Sirsi Dynix features you want to pursue with 
the new site?   
Follow-up Answer: What we indicated above is what we are initially interested in: anything 
from unified search of resources including website, catalog, events, etc. It could include user 
account features integrated with the website itself. Book carousels, etc. 
 
Question: What are your average monthly bandwidth and storage requirements for website 
hosting?  
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Answer: On average we get 102,000 visits per month; storage: 81 MB for code, 13 MB for 
database, and 1 GB for files.   
 
Question: Would you be interested in a product that could be implemented across all libraries 
as a single instance / deployment OR will a deployment be preferred per library?  
Answer: N/A outside the scope of the RFP 
 
Question: Will you require Facebook Messenger and Text Messaging channels and is WhatsApp 
support a requirement?  
Answer: N/A outside the scope of the RFP 
 
Question: Do you want messaging on different parts of the website (for example Teen Section) 
to be tagged as coming from that section?  
Answer: Yes, we would want what we currently have at minimum which in chat feature that is 
fully integrated through the website and library catalog. 

Question: Would you like the ability to be able to transfer conversations between teams? 
Answer: N/A outside the scope of the RFP 

Question: Is internal collaboration / chat around customer conversations important to you? 
Answer: N/A outside the scope of the RFP 

Question: What type of self-help information would you like to provide customers with?  
Answer: N/A outside the scope of the RFP 
 
Question: Will you require an iPhone and Android app?  
Answer: N/A outside the scope of the RFP 
 
Question: Which of the following desktop environments should this product support (Windows, 
Mac, Linux).  
Answer: N/A outside the scope of the RFP 
 
Question: What type of reporting, analytics and dashboards are you interested in?   
Answer: N/A outside the scope of the RFP 
 
Question: What type of integration capabilities do you require and how critical is integration to 
you?  
Answer: Yes, we would want what we currently have at minimum which in chat feature that is 
fully integrated through the website and library catalog. This is a critical point of service for us.  
 


